### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

### NO. SC 05-1613

# WILLIAM MELVIN WHITE, Appellant,

 $\mathbf{v}_{ullet}$ 

# STATE OF FLORIDA, Appellee.

# INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

PETER J. CANNON Fla. Bar. 0109710 Capital Collateral Regional Counsel Middle Region 3801 Corporex Park Drive Suite 210 Tampa, Florida 33619 (813)740-3544

Attorney for Appellant

## **Preliminary Statement**

This appeal involves a lower court order denying postconviction relief under Fl.R.Crim.P. 3.851. The following citations are utilized when referencing the record.

"GT" refers to the original guilt phase transcript and order.

"PT" refers to the resentencing transcript and order.

"EH" refers to the evidentiary hearing transcript and order for the 2003 3.851 motion.

## **Request for Oral Argument**

Mr. White is presently under a sentence of death. The issues involved are complex and in order to fully present his case before this Court, Mr. White respectfully requests oral argument.

# **Table of Contents**

Preliminary Statement
Request for Oral Argument
Table of Authorities6
Statement of the Case9
Statement of the Facts
Summary of the Argument
Standard of Review13
Argument ARGUMENT I NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE OF FRANK MARASA'S STATEMENT REGARDING THE MURDER OF GRACIE MAE CRAWFORD EXCULPATES MR. WHITE OF THE CRIME OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER AND MAKES HIM INELIGIBLE FOR THE DEATH PENALTY
ARGUMENT II MR. WHITE WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION WHEN TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO CALL JOSEPH WATTS AS A WITNESS20
ARGUMENT III MR. WHITE WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION WHEN RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL FAILED TO CALL JOSEPH WATTS AS A WITNESS BEFORE THE RE-SENTENCING JURY
ARGUMENT IV MR. WHITE WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND

THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION WHEN
RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL FAILED TO CALL JOHN DIMARINO AS A
WITNESS
ARGUMENT V
MR. WHITE'S FOURTH, FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH
AMENDMENT RIGHTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE
CORRESPONDING PROVISION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION WERE
VIOLATED WHEN THE STATE USED A PRIOR CONVICTION FROM TENNESSEE
AS AN AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE IN SUPPORT OF MR. WHITE'S DEATH
SENTENCE. MR. WHITE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL WHEN COUNSEL FAILED TO PROPERLY CHALLENGE MR. WHITE'S
PRIOR CONVICTION FROM TENNESSEE OR PRESENT TESTIMONY TO THE
JURY THAT WOULD HAVE MITIGATED THE OFFENSE FOR WHICH MR. WHITE
WAS CONVICTED32
ARGUMENT VI
THE STATE OFFERED TESTIMONY IN VIOLATION OF BRADY AND GIGLIO AT
THE GUILT PHASE OF MR. WHITE'S ORIGINAL TRIAL, IN VIOLATION OF THE
SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WHEN IT INTRODUCED
UNDISCLOSED AND PERJURED TESTIMONY FROM THE CO-DEFENDANT
RICHARD DIMARINO THAT MATERIALLY AFFECTED THE OUTCOME OF MR.
WHITE'S CASE
ARGUMENT VII
MR. WHITE'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL PROVIDED INEFFECTIVE
ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL WHEN HE AGREED TO STRIKE FOR CAUSE A JUROR
BASED ONLY ON THE FACT THAT ENGLISH WAS NOT HER PRIMARY
LANGUAGE IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO
THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING
PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION62
A D CLUMENTE VIIII
ARGUMENT VIII
MR. WHITE WAS DENIED THE EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAWS DURING HIS RE-SENTENCING UNDER THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE
FLORIDA CONSTITUTION AND WHEN A JUROR WAS STRUCK BASED ONLY ON
THE FACT THAT ENGLISH WAS NOT HER PRIMARY LANGUAGE.AS A RESULT,
MR. WHITE'S RE-SENTENCING WAS DONE IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH

AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE

CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION73
ARGUMENT IX
MR. WHITE WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND
THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
BECAUSE RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE BY NOT FULLY
EXPLORING JUROR WILLIAMS'S RESPONSE OR NOT CHALLENGING HIM FOR
CAUSE BASED ON HIS RESPONSE DURING VOIR DIRE84
Conclusion85
Certificates

# **Table of Authorities**

## Cases

Alen v. State, 596 So.2d 1083 (3rd DCA 1992)66
Asay v. State, 769 So.2d 974 (Fla. 2000)57
Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238, 89 S. Ct. 1709, 1712 (1969)34
Boykins v. State, 783 So.2d 317 (Fla. 5 <sup>th</sup> DCA 2001)66
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963)passim
Craig v. State, 685 So.2d 1224 (Fla. 1997)55
Dilorenzo v. State, 711 So.2d 1362 (Fla. 4 <sup>th</sup> DCA 1998)
Duncan v. Louisiana, 391 U.S. 145 (1968)33
Floyd v. State, 90 So. 2d 105, 106 (Fla. 1956)
Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150 (1972)passim
Green v. State, 688 So.2d 301 (Fla. 1997)41
Guzman v. State, 868 So.2d 498 (2003)59
Hernandez v. New York, 500 U.S. 352 (1991)
Hitchcock v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 393, 107 S.Ct. 1821, 95 L.Ed.2d 347 (1987)14
Jones v. State, 591 So. 2d 911, 916 (Fla. 1991)20
Johnson v. Singletary, 647 So. 2d 106, 111 (Fla. 1994)20
Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458 (1938)
Lemon v. State, 498 So. 2d 923 (Fla. 1986)

<i>Lightbourne v. State</i> , 549 So. 2d 1364, 1365 (Fla. 1989)20
Lightbourne v. State, 742 So. 2d 238, 249 (Fla. 1999)19
Melendez v. State, 718 So. 2d 746(Fla. 1998)19
Muhammad v. State, 782 So.2d 343 (Fla. 2001 )24
Phillips v. State, 608 So.2d 778 (Fla. 1992)55
Powers v. New York, 111 S.Ct. 1364, 1369 (1991)
Rose v. State, 774 So.2d 629 (Fla. 2000)
Re Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, 343 So. 2d 1247, 1264-65 (Fla.1977)17
Roberts v. State, 678 So. 2d 1232, 1235 (Fla. 1996)
Rompilla v. Beard, 125 S.Ct. 2456 (2005)
Routly v. State, 590 So.2d 397 (Fla. 1992)55
Scott v. State, 657 So. 2d 1129, 1132 (Fla. 1995)
State v. Mills, 788 So. 2d 249, 250 (Fla. 2001)
Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 LED.2d 674 (1984)
Sullivan v. Louisiana, 508 U.S. 275 (1993)
Swafford v. State, 679 So. 2d 736, 739 (Fla. 1996)
Tedder v. State, 322 So.2d 908 (Fla.1975)23
Trepal v. State, 846 So.2d 405 (Fla. 2003)58
United States v. Alzate, 47 F.3d 1103 (11th Cir.1995)52

White v. State, 415 So.2d 719, 719-20 (Fla.1982)passim
White v. Dugger, 523 So.2d 140 (1988)
White v. State, 817 So.2d 799 (Fla. 2002)passim
Wiggins v. Smith, 123 S.Ct. 2527 (2003)passim
Rules & Guidelines  ABA Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of Counsel in Death Penalty Cases (1989)
Other Authorities  Juan F. Perea, <i>Hernandez v. New York: Courts, Prosecutors, and the Fear of Spanish</i> , 21  Hoffstra L. Rev. 1, 7 (1992)
Hitchcock v. State, SC03-2203 (Order dated May 3, 2005)

#### **Statement of the Case**

In 1978, a grand jury indicted Mr. White for First Degree murder for the death of Gracie Mae Crawford along with two co-defendants, Richard DiMarino and Guy Ennis Smith. Mr. White entered a plea of not guilty. He went to trial and was convicted on November 30, 1978. An advisory jury returned a sentence of death on December 20, 1978. The trial court, finding that the three aggravating circumstances outweighed the sole statutory mitigating circumstance, sentenced appellant to death in accordance with the unanimous jury recommendation. This Court affirmed the conviction and sentence of death. White v. State, 415 So.2d 719, 719-20 (Fla.1982) (White I). Mr. White filed this initial rule 3.850 motion in 1983. In 1987, while appellant's rule 3.850 motion was pending, the United States Supreme Court issued its opinion in *Hitchcock v. Dugger*, 481 U.S. 393, 107 S.Ct. 1821, 95 L.Ed.2d 347 (1987). The trial court stayed further proceedings in this postconviction motion until final disposition of the habeas petition. This Court rejected Mr. White's claim for relief, concluding that "[t]he charge which may have limited the jury to a consideration of statutory mitigating circumstance was clearly harmless." White v. Dugger, 523 So.2d 140, 141 (Fla.), cert. denied,488 U.S. 871, 109 S.Ct. 184, 102 L.Ed.2d 153 (1988). The trial court subsequently held an evidentiary hearing on most of appellant's claims and denied relief on all claims by order dated April 16, 1996. This Court affirmed the trial court's order as it relates to appellant's conviction but based on *Hitchcock v. Dugger*, 481 U.S. 393, 107 S.Ct. 1821,

95 L.Ed.2d 347 (1987), vacated appellant's death sentence and remanded for a new sentencing proceeding before a jury. *White v. State*, 729 So.2d 909 (Fla. 1999) (White II). After new sentencing hearing before jury, the Circuit Court, Orange County, Margaret T. Waller, J., the circuit court again imposed a death sentence. Mr. White appealed and this Court affirmed his sentence. *White v. State*, 817 So.2d 799 (Fla. 2002) (White III).

On December 16, 2003, Mr. White filed a new motion to vacate his judgment of conviction and sentence pursuant to Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.851. Twelve grounds for relief were submitted. A case management conference was held on June 28, 2004 after which the court denied a request for an evidentiary hearing summarily except as to a portion of Claim V. An evidentiary hearing was held as to this portion of Claim V. The trial court denied Mr. White's motion on August 1, 2005. A timely notice of appeal was filed.

#### **Statement of the Facts**

This Court and the lower courts have repeatedly used the facts as stated in the original 1982 opinion to uphold Mr. White's conviction and sentence of death. Since that time we have learned a lot about the facts that transpired the night Ms. Crawford was killed. It would be inappropriate to recite those facts as true, for they are not.

What has been discovered since Mr. White's original trial challenges any confidence one may have in the verdict and sentence. Every favorable fact found of Mr. White's innocence since the original trial has never been refuted by the evidence. Each and every time the

courts have rejected the true facts of what occurred on procedural or statutory grounds. (see PT Order 4-13).

The facts today, stripped of any procedural posturing, show that Richard DiMarino confessed to three different individuals that he killed Ms. Crawford. While Richard DiMarino admitted to his involvement in the murder at the original trial, he has consistently denied be the actual person who stabbed the victim. This fact alone, cited over and over again, is what keeps Mr. White on death row. Frank Marasa, Joseph Watts and John DiMarino all provided evidence that Richard DiMarino killed Ms. Crawford. Further, it is uncontroverted that Richard DiMarino corrupted the truth seeking process of the criminal justice system when he perjured himself during the original trial. (EH ROA Vol. II 3-26).

Even during Mr. White's resentencing, many of the true facts concerning the night in question were kept from the jury. Error by the trial court and ineffective assistance of counsel all but guaranteed a new death sentence for Mr. White.

## **Summary of the Argument**

The lower court committed error when it summarily denied many of Mr. White's claims based on procedural bar. This Court has repeatedly held since Fl.R.Crim.P. 3.851 was amended that factual claims not refuted by the record should receive an evidentiary hearing. *Lightbourne v. State*, 742 So. 2d 238, 249 (Fla. 1999)(remanding for an evidentiary hearing to evaluate the reliability and veracity of trial testimony).

The summary denial of several factual claims also affected Mr. White's claim that this court conflated the *Brady* and *Giglio* materiality standards in its 1999 opinion denying post-conviction relief. Even though this Court has subsequently admitted its error in the *Guzman* decision, the trial court compounded this error when it did not analyze the newly discovered evidence in a proper materiality analysis.

The trial court did conduct an evidentiary hearing on one-half of one claim involving ineffective assistance of counsel under *Strickland* and *Wiggins* when evidence was heard regarding Mr. Markham. Under *Rompilla*, a strategic decision to withhold evidence that otherwise mitigates an aggravator is deficient performance. In the instant case, Mr. White's resentencing attorney failed to introduce the testimony of Mr. Markham that would have severely challenged the prior violent felony aggravator that was introduced by the state. Although this testimony was introduced at the *Spencer* hearing, Mr. White's resentencing was flawed due to the unique structure of Florida's capital sentencing scheme. Under *Tedder*, a jury's recommendation must be given great weight by the court in sentencing an individual to life or death. If that jury did not receive the necessary information to render a reliable advisory sentence, then the entire sentencing scheme is compromised. This is what happened in Mr. White's case.

#### Standard of Review

The appropriate standard of review is discussed as it relates to the individual arguments.

#### Argument

#### **ARGUMENT I**

NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE OF FRANK MARASAS STATEMENT REGARDING THE MURDER OF GRACIE MAE CRAWFORD EXCULPATES MR. WHITE OF THE CRIME OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER AND MAKES HIM INELIGIBLE FOR THE DEATH PENALTY

In Mr. White's 2003 motion to vacate judgment and sentence, he presented information to the post-conviction court that constituted newly discovered evidence regarding his conviction for First Degree Murder. Frank Marasa was a member of the Outlaws Motorcycle club at the time of the murder of Gracie Mae Crawford. Mr. Marasa was a close acquaintance of Richard and John Dimarino because he was dating their sister at the time of the offense. On several occasions, he would stay at their house. In fact, in 1985, Mr. Marasa married Patricia Dimarino and became in-laws to the Dimarino brothers. On the night of the murder, Mr. Marasa had lent Richard Dimarino his Econoline Ford van and then went home with his then girlfriend and eventually passed out. (EH Vol. II 3-4)

The next day, Mr. Marasa had his girlfriend drive him to the home of Joseph Watts to pick up his van who was also a member of the Outlaws Motorcycle Club and lived nearby. When Mr. Marasa pulled up to the front yard of Mr. Watts home, he saw Richard and John Dimarino in the front yard. Richard Dimarino was holding a wig in his hand. During a brief conversation, Richard DiMarino told Mr. Marasa that he had to get rid of a girl last night. Mr. Marasa told Richard Dimarino that he did not want to hear anymore about it and just

wanted to know if his van was used to commit any crimes. Richard Dimarino responded that his van was not used for the murder. Mr. Marasa was arrested later along with Mr. White, Mr. Smith and Mr. Dimarino for the murder of Gracie Mae Crawford. Law enforcement had seized his van and Mr. Marasa had consented to a search of the vehicle. No evidence was found in the van. Mr. Marasa was eventually released. In a statement given to law enforcement, Mr. Marasa denied having any knowledge of the murder of Gracie Mae Crawford in exercising his right to remain silent and following the "code" of the Outlaw Motorcycle Club to not inform on other members. (EH Vol. II 3-4).

There was not an absolute prohibition to second post-conviction motions at the time that Mr. White filed his original post-conviction motion in 1983. Thu,s had Mr. White not received a new penalty phase from the United States Supreme Court he could have filed a second post-conviction motion after completing the course of litigation to that Court. Following the United States Supreme Courts opinion in *Hitchcock v. Dugger*, 481 U.S.1168 (1987), Mr. White received a new sentencing due to the States repeated denial of his constitutional rights.

This current appeal was Mr. White sirst opportunity to fully investigate through counsel, these present post-conviction claims, some of which were discovered well after Mr. White had received his last sentencing hearing. Accordingly, because the instant motion was filed within the time requirement of the current rule, Mr. White was not barred from raising claims concerning his 1978 guilt phase.

The evolution of the post-conviction rules showed that Mr. White could properly bring the claims argued in this motion under Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.851.

Specifically, Rule 3.851 provides in part:

- (d) Time Limitation.
- (1) Any motion to vacate judgment of conviction and sentence of death shall be filed by the prisoner within 1 year after the judgment and sentence become final. For the purposes of this rule, a judgment is final:...
- (A) on the expiration of the time permitted to file in the United States Supreme Court a petition for writ of certiorari seeking review of the Supreme Court of Florida decision affirming a judgment and sentence of death (90 days after the opinion becomes final)
- (B) on the disposition of the petition for writ of certiorari by the United States Supreme Court, if filed.

Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.851(d).

Mr. White filed this motion within one year of his judgment and sentence becoming final. Moreover, this motion was not a successor motion. Paragraph E subparagraph 2 defines a motion as successive Aif a state court has previously ruled on a postconviction motion challenging the same judgment and sentence. Considering that Mr. White judgment and sentence did not become final until the United States Supreme Court disposed of his certiorari petition in 2002, Mr. White was within the relevant time provisions of this Rule. The rules simply do not provide for different rules when the defendant guilt phase and sentencing phase occur at different times.

Mr. White=s original 3.850 motion was filed before 1984 when successor motions were addressed for the first time. Accordingly, when his attorneys filed that motion they did so with the understanding that they could later file an additional motion. The rule in effect

when Mr. White filed this motion in 1983, Rule 3.850(1977), provided:

RULE 3.850. MOTION TO VACATE, SET ASIDE OR CORRECT SENTENCE; HEARING: APPEAL A prisoner in custody under sentence of a court established by the laws of Florida claiming the right to be released upon the ground that the judgment was entered or that the sentence was imposed in violation of the Constitution or Laws of the United States, or of the State of Florida, or that the court was without jurisdiction to enter such judgment or to impose such sentence, or that the sentence was in excess of the maximum authorized by law, or that his plea was given involuntarily, or the judgment or sentence is otherwise subject to collateral attack, may move the court which entered the judgment or imposed the sentence to vacate, set aside or correct the judgment or sentence. A motion for such relief may be made at any time. The motion shall be under oath and include the following information:(a) The judgment or sentence under attack and the court which rendered the same;(b) Whether there was an appeal from the judgment or sentence and the disposition thereof;(c) Whether a previous post-conviction motion has been filed, and if so, how many;(d) The nature of the relief sought;(e) A brief statement of the facts (rather than conclusions) relied upon in support of the motion. The court will refuse to receive any motion filed pursuant to this rule which is not in substantial compliance with the requirements hereof. If the motion and the files and records in the case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no relief, the motion shall be denied without a hearing. In those instances when such denial is not predicated upon the legal insufficiency of the motion on its face, a copy of that portion of the files and records which conclusively shows that the prisoner is entitled to no relief shall be attached to the other. Unless the motion and the files and records of the case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no relief, the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon the prosecuting attorney of the court, grant a prompt hearing thereon, determine the issues and make findings of fact and conclusions of law with respect thereto. If the court finds that the judgment was rendered without jurisdiction, or that the sentence imposed was not authorized by law or is otherwise open to collateral attack, or that there has been such a denial or infringement of the constitutional rights of the prisoner as to render the judgment vulnerable to collateral attack, the court shall vacate and set the judgment aside and shall discharge the prisoner or resentence him or grant him a new trial or correct the sentence as may appear appropriate. A court may entertain and determine such motion without requiring the production of the prisoner at the hearing. The sentencing court shall not be required to entertain a second or successive motion for similar relief on behalf of the same prisoner. An appeal may be taken to the appropriate appellate court from the order entered on the motion as from a final judgment on application for writ of habeas corpus. All

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