IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

WILLIAM MELVIN WHITE,

Appellant,

V.

Case No. SC05-1613

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. ATTORNEY GENERAL

STEPHEN D. AKE
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Florida Bar No. 14087
Concourse Center 4
3507 East Frontage Road, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33607-7013
Telephone: (813) 287-7910
Facsimile: (813) 281-5501

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The lower court properly summarily denied Appellant's claim that newly discovered evidence exculpates Appellant of the murder of Gracie Mae Crawford. The court properly found that Appellant's claim is procedurally barred. Furthermore, as the lower court properly found, even if the claim was preserved, it lacked merit. Appellant never has established when he discovered this "new" evidence, and more importantly, the evidence was cumulative to that presented at Appellant's trial and there is no probability that the evidence would produce an acquittal upon retrial.

Appellant's allegation of ineffective assistance of 1978 guilt phase trial counsel is procedurally barred. Appellant could have presented this claim in his 1983 postconviction motion, or as an amendment to that motion prior to January 1, 1987. In addition, his claim is without merit. Even assuming his allegation is true, there is no reasonable possibility that Joseph Watts' testimony regarding Richard DiMarino's admission to the murder would have affected the jury verdict.

The lower court properly denied Appellant's conclusory claim of ineffective assistance of resentencing counsel for failure to call Joseph Watts as a witness before the jury. In addition to being insufficiently pled, the claim lacked merit.

Even had resentencing counsel presented the testimony of Watts before the jury, it would not have changed the result of the proceedings. Mr. Watts presumably would have testified that DiMarino admitted to killing the victim. This evidence was consistent with DiMarino's testimony admitting to his involvement and cumulative to other evidence presented. Thus, Appellant is unable to establish that he was prejudiced by resentencing counsel's decision to present Watts at the Spencer hearing, rather than before the jury.

The lower court properly denied Appellant's claim of ineffective assistance of resentencing counsel based on counsel's inability to present the live testimony of Richard DiMarino's brother, John DiMarino. Resentencing counsel placed on the record his efforts in attempting to locate the reluctant witness, and ultimately published John DiMarino's 1978 testimony from Appellant's guilt phase to the resentencing jury. Appellant has failed to demonstrate deficient performance or prejudice as a result of having this testimony published to the jury rather than presented live.

The postconviction court properly denied Appellant's ineffective assistance of counsel claim based on resentencing counsel's handling of Appellant's prior murder conviction from Tennessee at his resentencing hearing. The court properly

summarily denied the portion of this claim regarding counsel's failure to challenge the validity of Appellant's 1980 murder conviction and quilty plea because the record clearly refutes Appellant's allegations. The court granted Appellant evidentiary hearing on the portion of Appellant's ineffectiveness claim regarding resentencing counsel's decision to present the Tennessee codefendant, Michael Markham, during the Spencer hearing rather than before the jury. Appellant was unable to establish either deficient performance or prejudice as a result of trial counsel's strategic decision to present Markham at the Spencer hearing. Accordingly, this Court should affirm the lower court's denial of this issue.

The lower court properly found that Appellant's Brady/Giglio claim was procedurally barred. Appellant litigated the same exact issue in his 1983 postconviction motion and this Court extensively discussed the issue in its opinion affirming the lower court's denial of this issue. Appellant simply seeks a second review of his previously denied claim.

The postconviction court properly denied Appellant's ineffective assistance of counsel claim based on resentencing counsel's agreement with the State to strike prospective juror Fuentes for cause. The juror indicated that her feelings about the appropriateness of the death penalty would interfere with

her participating as a part of the jury making the sentencing recommendation. Contrary to Appellant's assertions, the record conclusively demonstrates that prospective juror Fuentes was not struck for cause based on her inability to speak or understand the English language.

The lower court properly denied Appellant's ineffective assistance of counsel claim based on resentencing counsel's questioning of prospective juror Williams during voir dire and his failure to challenge the juror for cause. Appellant failed to establish either deficient performance or prejudice as a result of the voir dire questioning. Accordingly, this Court should affirm the lower court's denial of Appellant's postconviction motion.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

THE LOWER COURT PROPERLY DENIED APPELLANT'S CLAIM OF NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE BECAUSE THE ISSUE WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED, AND EVEN IF PROPERLY RAISED, WAS WITHOUT MERIT.

Appellant argued in his postconviction motion that "newly" discovered evidence of Frank Marasa's statement regarding the murder of Gracie Mae Crawford exculpates him of first degree murder. Specifically, Appellant asserts that the day after the murder, Appellant's codefendant, Richard DiMarino, told Frank Marasa that "he had to get rid of a girl last night." (PCR V1:3-7). Appellant did not allege in his motion when he discovered this "new" evidence.

The lower court summarily denied the instant claim as procedurally barred. (PCR V2:216-17). The court also found that the newly discovered evidence claim did not merit relief on the merits as Appellant failed to establish that (1) the newly discovered evidence was unknown to the defendant or the defendant's counsel at the time of trial and could not have been discovered through due diligence, and (2) that the evidence is of such a nature that it would probably produce an acquittal upon retrial. The State submits that the trial court properly denied Appellant's procedurally barred claim, and alternatively, even if preserved, the court correctly found that Appellant was

unable to establish that he was entitled to relief based on his claim of newly discovered evidence.

To uphold the lower court's summary denial of claims raised in a postconviction motion, the claims must be either facially invalid or conclusively refuted by the record. Peede v. State, 748 So. 2d 253, 257 (Fla. 1999); see also Teffeteller v. Dugger, 734 So. 2d 1009, 1016 (Fla. 1999) (stating that a motion for postconviction relief can be denied without a hearing when the motion the record conclusively demonstrate defendant is entitled to no relief). Where no evidentiary hearing is held below, this Court must accept the defendant's factual allegations to the extent they are not refuted by the Lightbourne v. Dugger, 549 So. 2d 1364, 1365 (Fla. record. 1989); Griffin v. State, 866 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 2003).

Appellant claims that because he filed his original postconviction motion in 1983, the time requirements of the present postconviction rule do not apply to his claim. This is not the case. Appellant's judgment and sentence became final in 1982. See White v. State, 415 So. 2d 719 (Fla.), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 1055 (1982). Appellant filed his initial rule 3.850 motion in 1983, and that motion was not ruled upon until 1996. On appeal of the denial of his 3.850 motion, this Court affirmed the trial court's order as to his conviction, however, based on

a <u>Hitchcock</u>⁷ error, this Court vacated Appellant's death sentence and remanded for a new sentencing hearing. <u>See</u> <u>White v. State</u>, 729 So. 2d 909 (Fla. 1999).

As the lower court properly found, during the 12½ years that Appellant's 3.850 motion was pending, he never sought to amend his motion to raise the instant claim. Because Appellant failed to do so, the court correctly found that he is barred from raising the instant issue in these proceedings. As this Court noted in the procedurally-identical case of Zeigler v. State, 632 So. 2d 48, 50 (Fla. 1993), "[a]n individual whose judgment and sentence became final prior to January 1, 1985, had until January 1, 1987, to file under the rule." See also Sireci v. State, 773 So. 2d 34, 44 (Fla. 2000) (holding that Sireci's conviction became final in 1982 and, even though he was resentenced to death in 1990, his claims of ineffective assistance of counsel at the guilt phase were time-barred and successive); Downs v. State, 740 So. 2d 506, 513 (Fla. 1999) (recognizing January 1, 1987, as the deadline for seeking postconviction relief for those convictions which became final prior to January 1, 1985); Breedlove v. Singletary, 595 So. 2d 8, 11 (Fla. 1992) (overlooking procedural default when defendant failed to amend postconviction claim because of unique fact that

⁷ <u>Hitchcock v. Dugger</u>, 481 U.S. 393 (1987).

Breedlove was represented by the public defender's office at both his trial and during his first rule 3.850 postconviction proceeding).⁸

The only exception to this procedural bar is when "the facts on which the claim is predicated were unknown to the movant or the movant's attorney and could not have been ascertained by the exercise of due diligence." Zeigler, 632 So. 2d at 50 (quoting Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.850(b)(1)). Appellant has not alleged, much less demonstrated, why he could not have raised the instant claim, the Richard DiMarino statement to Frank Marasa, either in his 1983 postconviction motion, or by amendment to it. Appellant's conclusory allegation in his postconviction motion that the lower court and "the Courts of Florida are uniquely aware of the Code of Silence practiced by the Outlaw Motorcycle Club" is insufficient to explain why Marasa could not have been

⁸ Appellant argues in his brief that his case is in the "exact same procedural posture" of Mr. James Hitchcock's case, and cites to an order from this Court remanding Hitchcock's case to the circuit court in order to conduct an evidentiary hearing on Hitchcock's guilt phase issues. This order was issued after oral arguments were conducted before the Court after the denial of the postconviction proceedings. However, as a review of the briefs and oral argument in that case reveals, Hitchcock's case is not in the same procedural posture as Appellant's. Notably, unlike White, Hitchcock did not raise any guilt phase issues in his original postconviction proceeding. Furthermore, this Court's unpublished order in Hitchcock did not reverse the well established law in Zeigler, Sireci, or Downs.

interviewed during the preparation for Appellant's original 3.850 motion, or during the decade plus after Appellant's original motion was filed. Because Appellant has wholly failed to specifically explain why he could not have raised the Marasa issue in his original postconviction motion, and therefore why the time and successive petitions bar should not apply to this claim, the State submits that the lower court properly denied the claim as procedurally barred.

In addition to finding Appellant's claim procedurally barred, the lower court also found that Appellant failed to carry his burden of establishing a viable newly discovered evidence claim. This Court has set forth the two requirements a defendant must demonstrate in order to prevail on a newly discovered evidence claim:

Two requirements must be met in order for a conviction to be set aside on the basis of newly discovered evidence. First, in order to be considered newly discovered, the evidence "must have been unknown by the trial court, by the party, or by counsel at the time of trial, and it must appear that defendant or his counsel could not have known [of it] by the use of diligence."

Second, the newly discovered evidence must be of such nature that it would probably produce an acquittal on retrial. To reach this conclusion the trial court is required to "consider all newly discovered evidence which would be admissible" at trial and then evaluate the "weight of both the newly discovered evidence and the evidence which was introduced at the trial."

Robinson v. State, 865 So.2d 1259, 1262 (Fla. 2004) (citations omitted). Appellant fails to meet either of requirements set forth in Robinson. In the above discussion of the timeliness and successive pleading procedural bars, it has been noted that Appellant has failed to explain why his proposed witness, Marasa, could not have been discovered by diligent efforts either prior to trial, in the preparation for White's 1983 postconviction motion, or in preparation for an amendment of that motion at some point prior to 1996 when it was denied by the trial court. Moreover, the transcript of the 1999 penalty phase clearly shows that Frank Marasa had been discovered by penalty phase trial counsel, and that they decided not to call Marasa as a matter of strategy. (DAR V9:1166). Marasa's testimony cannot now be "newly discovered" because Marasa was known, and had been talked to, by the time of the 1999 proceeding.

Additionally, as the trial court properly found, even assuming for the sake of argument that Appellant could establish the first requirement, it is clear that Marasa's statement, as set out in Appellant's postconviction motion, is not evidence which would have produced a different outcome in White's 1978 guilt trial. At that trial, Richard DiMarino testified under oath that he helped Appellant take the victim out to the

deserted area where she was killed, that he helped put her over a fence, and that he also cut her throat. (GP V3:484-92). was therefore quite clear to the quilt phase jury that DiMarino and Appellant murdered the victim. If DiMarino told Marasa the day after the murder that "he had to get rid of a girl last night," then that statement was consistent with what DiMarino actually told the 1978 guilt phase jury himself. It simply is not "new" information in any sense of the word, and certainly would not have changed the outcome of the guilt trial. proposed Marasa testimony simply duplicates the testimony of John DiMarino, which was in fact presented to the jury. V4:602-16). It is therefore merely cumulative evidence. Cumulative evidence cannot raise a reasonable probability that a different outcome would have been obtained if such evidence had been admitted. See Valle v. State, 705 So.2d 1331, 1334 (Fla. 1997) (claim that defense counsel was ineffective for failing to call witnesses that would have been cumulative to other evidence was properly denied without an evidentiary hearing). Based on these reasons, the State submits that the trial court properly found that Appellant's newly discovered evidence claim, addition to being procedurally barred, was without merit.

ISSUE II

APPELLANT'S CLAIM OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF TRIAL COUNSEL BASED ON COUNSEL'S DECISION NOT TO CALL JOSEPH WATTS AT APPELLANT'S 1978 TRIAL IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED AND WITHOUT MERIT.

Appellant claimed in his postconviction motion that his 1978 trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call Joseph Watts, a member of the Outlaws motorcycle gang, to testify that Richard DiMarino "admitted to Mr. Watts that he killed Gracie Mae Crawford." (PCR V1:7). Appellant has failed to articulate a reason why he could not have raised the alleged ineffective assistance of counsel claim in, or an amendment to, his 1983 postconviction motion. As such, the lower court properly found, for the same reasons as set forth in Issue I, supra, that this claim is procedurally barred.

The lower court also found that, even if the claim is not procedurally barred, it lacks substantive merit. (PCR V2:218). In order to establish a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, a defendant must establish both deficient performance and prejudice, as set forth in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984). As to the first prong, deficient performance, a defendant must establish conduct on the part of counsel that is outside the broad range of competent performance under prevailing professional standards. See Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688. Under the second prong, "[t]he defendant must show that

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